Bend Metro Park & Recreation District
Board of Directors

Retreat
December 1, 2006

BOARD PRESENT: Ruth Williamson, Ted Schoenborn, Bob Woodward and Don
Smith.

STAFF PRESENT: Don Horton, Bruce Ronning, Wayne Smith, Lindsey
Lombard, Jan Taylor, Ed Moore, Theresa Albert and Paula
Lowery.

MEDIA: Yoko Minoura, The Bulletin.

9:am - 12:00 Noon - Tour

The Board and staff toured various district-owned properties and the Kids Inc. site at
Bear Creek School. Properties visited included a flag lot located adjacent to the Stosh
Thompson property and an ASI located in southwest Bend, the Hanson property and
Gardenside Park located in the southeast, the Fire Station on Hamby Road and Orchard
Park in the northeast.

Following the tour the Board and staff met at the Senior Center.

Hamby Road Fire Station

The Board and staff toured the facility where the sports program stores equipment for
Big Sky programs, and existing conditions of various rooms was observed. It was noted
that the facility is occasionally used to conduct coaches meetings and as a location for
Big Sky sports program participants to pick up equipment.

The Board was presented with minutes from the January 17, 2006 public meeting
regarding future uses of the Fire Station. Staff reiterated the zoning restrictions and
discussed the potential for using the building as an eastside satellite maintenance
facility. The Board discussed the importance of determining the feasibility of changing
the zoning to accommodate district needs and how that process would require
legislative action.

OUTCOME

¢ The Board directed staff to further evaluate and investigate the zone change process.

¢ The Board recommended further evaluation of the building to determine if the
facility needs to be renovated to meet maintenance facility needs and maintain sports
equipment storage.

Interpretive Programming



BMPRD Board of Directors
Minutes - Retreat 12-01-06
Page 2

Jan Taylor reviewed the components of the district’s existing interpretive program
including: historic interpretive signs in parks, riparian interpretive signs to be installed
at Farewell Bend Park, Shevlin Park self guided tour of native plants, teaching
minimum impact use to adults and children in outdoor recreation programs, “get to
know the trail” walking program, and a variety of components provided in the district’s
outdoor program area. Jan explained that staff has been exploring the development of a
more comprehensive interpretive program to build and enhance an environmental
ethic, instill pride and stewardship of our parks, and build positive relations with
district patrons.

Jan identified interpretive program objectives and explained statf has designed four
phases to achieve the objectives. She explained the first phase would build upon
existing self-guided interpretive opportunities that would require little support in terms
of financing or staffing. Jan stated phase one would include developing, promoting and
advertising a walking tour of parks with historical interpretive signs, and revising the
walking tour brochure for Shevlin Park to be more visually pleasing and ensuring that
reference signs are in tact. She stated that phase two would add a self guided tour of
the south canyon loop trail making use of a River Smarts flyer produced for the River
Trail Ramble that could easily be updated and made available at the trail head, visitors
bureau and other district distribution outlets. Jan stated that new interpretive
stewardship concepts implemented in the summer of 2007 could include a river trail
scavenger hunt, summer park-talk series, Cougar Camp talks and Shevlin Park nature
walks. She concluded that phase four would involve designing and aligning
interpretive opportunities with school curriculum; discuss a cooperative interpretive
program with the High Desert Museum, Audubon Society and other organizations with
similar objectives; provide training for volunteer interpreters; develop historical
programs for Hollinshead Park and many other possibilities yet to be determined.

Ted stated he is interested in the passive opportunities that involve signage and
reported the Audubon Society has an endowment that could possibly help fund some
components of the District’s program. Don Smith referred to the signage that exists on
the Deschutes River Trail at Mt. Bachelor Village and suggested the same type be
considered for Shevlin Park. He added that could be an Eagle Scout project and
suggested the Audubon Society could look at the Eastgate property as a location for a
nature center. Bob noted that the kiosk at Shevlin Park could use more information to
inform park users of how the property historically relates to the community.

OUTCOME

¢ The Board recommended focusing on passive interpretation.

¢ The Board recommended focusing on expanding historical interpretation throughout
the parks.

¢ The Board directed staff to look at opportunities for developing relationships with
other groups who have expertise in local history and environmental science.



BMPRD Board of Directors
Minutes - Retreat 12-01-06
Page 3

¢ Examine future relationship with the Audubon Society for possible partnership to
build a nature center.

Sustainability

Ed Moore conducted a PowerPoint presentation identifying existing district
sustainability practices. He noted several projects conducted with community partners
including rehabilitation of riparian areas along the Deschutes River, the district’s Arbor
Week children’s tree planting program, management of fire fuels in partnership with
the USFS, the establishment of the district’'s composting program funded with the
assistance of two DEQ grants, and invasive weed control programs in cooperation with
neighborhood associations and Deschutes County. Ed also explained the use of the
“Lab”atory installed at Big Sky for the disposal of dog waste, a new program
implemented for lining sports fields with diluted, water base paint, the computerized
water management systems, use of organic fertilizer, noted the LEED design of the new
administration building, and identified areas of retrofitting facilities with more energy
efficient types of lighting. Ed stated the district is experimenting with using biodiesel
fuel in lawnmowers, the district purchases renewal power, has partnered with DEQ to
be the first park and recreation agency in Oregon to achieve EcoBiz certification, and
Park Services is currently in the application process to pursue an EcoBiz landscape
certification. Ed also highlighted the Park Services recent work to integrate CMMS with
GIS to create an asset management program and noted that information had been
presented to the Board at a recent work session.

Don Horton reported that he expects to establish a “green team” of staff to study the
financial feasibilities of sustainable practices. He stated he expects that the imbalances
of increased cost to implement these programs compared to the long term benefit are
shrinking.

Bob urged staff to continue to operate under the sustainable program and to retrofit
facilities where possible. He stated he felt the district could take the lead in the
community in implementing sustainable practices. Ruth stated sustainable practices
should be paramount in district operations.

OUTCOME

¢ The Board felt the district should demonstrate leadership in sustainable practices in
the community.

¢ The Board recommended retrofitting facilities where possible, such as replacing
lighting and applying other energy saving methods.

Board Governance

Don Horton referred to materials provide for the Board’s review including the current
Carver Governance model currently in place. He stated the Board had indicated a
desire to revisit the policy and discuss revisions or establishing a new policy. Don






